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PACIFIC REGION CCG VESSEL -POST CRUISE REPORT

NAME OF SHIP/PLATFORM:   W.E. Ricker
DATE:
October 28, 2004
FROM:
  October 19, 2004

TO:  October 30, 2004
SCIENCE CRUISE NUMBER:
2004-32 (part I)


SHIP’S PATROL NUMBER:

CHIEF SCIENTIST[S]:  

Dr. Marc Trudel, Pacific Biological Station, Nanaimo
AREAS OF OPERATION: 
West Coast Vancouver Island, Queen Charlotte Sound, Hecate Strait
CRUISE OBJECTIVE/OBJECTIVES:
To survey the juvenile salmon populations off British Columbia and Southeast Alaska in the fall. Stock composition, size, growth rates, feeding rates of juvenile salmon between northern and southern regions will be compared in relation to differences in the oceanography between these regions.

DAYS ALLOCATED:
12 days


DAYS OF OPERATION: 
9 days
DAYS LOST DUE TO WEATHER: 
none


RESULTS:

The cruise was highly successful and most scientific objectives were met.  It was not possible to collect juvenile salmon off Estevan Point due to adverse weather conditions.  As a result, we allocated more time than we initially anticipated in the inlets of the west coast of Vancouver Island.  This turned out to be a fortunate opportunity, as catches of juvenile salmon were much higher in the inlets compared to the continental shelf and deeper waters.  In addition, despite unfavourable weather forecast, we were able to complete a transect in Queen Charlotte Sound and Hecate Strait, as the weather was far less severe than was forecasted and was suitable for conducting scientific operations.  Dixon Entrance and southeast Alaska will be surveyed during the second part of our cruise on November 9-26, 2004.  A cruise plan for this period will be sent shortly.
A series of 5-7 stations were surveyed each day.  With a few exceptions, the following operations were conducted at each station: a surface tow for juvenile salmon, a vertical Bongo tow for plankton, a CTD cast, and sampling for phytoplankton and nutrients.

A total of 1,322 Pacific salmon were caught on the survey.  Of these, 226 were juvenile pink salmon (O. gorbuscha), 425 were juvenile chum salmon (O. keta), 40 were juvenile sockeye salmon (O. nerka), 194 were juvenile coho salmon (O. kisutch) in their first fall in the ocean, and 282 were Chinook salmon (O. tshawytscha) under 350 mm in fork length. 

Overall, the results of this survey are consistent with the surveys that have been conducted by the High Seas Salmon Program since 1998.  No juvenile salmon were caught beyond the shelf break: all the juvenile salmon were caught in the inlets and on the continental shelf.  Juvenile Chinook and coho salmon were predominant in the inlets and off the west coast of Vancouver Island, while juvenile pink, chum, and sockeye salmon were predominant in Queen Charlotte Sound and Hecate Strait.  However, we caught less juvenile pink salmon were than we anticipated in Hecate Strait, possibly because the survey was conducted 2 weeks later than previous years.  Smaller Chinook and coho were usually caught in the inlets while larger ones were caught on the continental shelf, except in Quatsino Sound were both small and large juvenile Chinook and coho were caught.
We also caught 10 Humboldt squid close to shore as we were heading north of Quatsino Sound on October 25, 2005.  This catch was surprising, as prior to 2004, none of these animals had been reported north of San Francisco, California.  Although catches have been reported from California to Sitka, Alaska, in 2004, this is the first time these squids have been reported in British Columbia at the end of October. This unusual sighting may reflect warmer water conditions that prevailed in 2004.  Thus we may except to see these animals more frequently as a result of climate change and global warming.  
Radioisotope Use: 

none
PROBLEMS [SCIENTIFIC GEAR AND OPERATIONS]: 

The counter on the winch for the Bongo nets ceased working, and was replaced by the one from the CTD, as this instrument transmit depth as it moves up or down the water column.  Hence, operator of the CTD winch was left without a counter, and relied entirely on the CTD operator in the acoustic lab.
SUCCESSES [SCIENTIFIC]:

This survey was highly successful and exceeded my expectations for this time of the year.  Although we had planned to collect juvenile salmon from the southern end of Vancouver Island to Hecate Strait during the first leg of our survey, I expected to loose several days due to weather at this time of the year and that we would be very fortunate if we could complete the Queen Charlotte transect during the first part of the fall survey.  We only lost an opportunity to collect juvenile salmon on the Estevan Point transect (this transect was added after the cruise plan was sent) due to unfavourable weather conditions, but where still able to fish during that day.
PROBLEMS [SHIP’S EQUIPMENT]

none
OPERATIONS/PLATFORM SUITABILITY:

Our research program requires a trawler with sufficient power to tow our net at or near the surface at five knots. The W.E. Ricker is the only Canadian Coast Guard ship that has these capabilities on the west coast of Canada, and as such was the best available platform to conduct our work.
 SUCCESSES [SHIP]:

It was a real pleasure to work with Captain Webb, the bridge officers, the fishing master, Keith Fry, the bosun, Jack “Champ” Kokorudz, and everyone on the deck crew. The working attitude on the ship was very professional. Their input was also very helpful in fine-tuning the sampling strategy and day-to-day operations and were much appreciated. 

The fishing operations with the mid-water trawl, the CTD casts as well as the vertical Bongo tows went very smoothly.

DELAYS [OTHER THAN WEATHER]:

none
SAFETY CONCERNS:

none
HAZARDOUS OCCURRENCES:
none
EVENT LOG:


Oct 19
Vessel loading PBS, Science completed loading 1:00 PM. Departed PBS at 2:00 PM. 

Oct 20
Conducted science operations in Barkley Sound. 
Oct 21
Conducted science operations off Tofino
Oct 22
 
Conducted science operations in Esperanza Sound
Oct 23

Conducted science operations off Esperanza Sound and Kyoquot Sound
Oct 24

Conducted science operations in Kyoquot Sound
Oct 25

Conducted science operations in Quatsino Sound
Oct 26
Conducted science operations in Queen Charlotte Sound
Oct 27

Conducted science operations in Queen Charlotte Sound
Oct 28

Conducted science operations in Hecate Strait
Oct 29

Travel day

Oct 30

Arrived at PBS at 9:00 PM. Finished off-loading of science gear at 10:00 PM.
SUMMARY/FINAL COMMENTS:

This was my second survey as a chief scientist on board a Canadian Coast Guard vessel.  I am quite satisfied with the operations of the ship and with the performance of the crew.  Captain Webb, the fishing master, Keith Fry, and the bosun, Jack ”Champ” Kokorudz, were very supportive of our research program and provided judicious advice throughout the survey.  In particular, despite unfavourable weather forecast, both Captain Webb and the fishing master recommended to continue with the planned sampling schedule, as the actual weather might have been quite different than the forecast.  By continuing with the schedule, we were able to accomplish more work, as the weather was frequently suitable for conducting scientific operations even when the forecast was unfavourable.  The crew was very efficient and pleasant to work with. I am looking forward to sailing with them again in a near future.
This fall survey is separated into two periods of approximately 2 weeks, because the Coast Guard training week was scheduled at the same time we have been normally using for our fall survey since 1998.  As a result, 1-2 days were lost to travel back to Nanaimo at the end of the first leg, and 2 days will be lost to travel from Nanaimo to the next series of stations in Dixon Entrance for the second part of the survey in November.  At $10,000 a day for ship time, this represents a loss of $30,000-$40,000 of sampling opportunities.  Although we should be able to accomplish all the primary objectives in the second part of the survey because we were very fortunate with weather conditions during the first leg, this may not always be the case for future years.  Hence, I recommend for future years that the Coast Guard training week be scheduled either before the beginning or at the end of our survey, or at a time when scientists do not normally use the ship to prevent unnecessary loss of valuable ship time.
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